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ADDENDUM NO. 1  
 

Date:                        March 19, 2019  
 

Project Name:        WABASSO CAUSEWAY FISHING PIER DEMOLITION PROJECT 
                                  (IRC-1712) 
 

Bid Number:           2019035 
  

Bid Opening Date: Wednesday, March 28, 2019 at 2:00 p.m.   
  
This addendum is released to provide clarification and plans update.    All information provided herein is hereby 
incorporated into the bid documents. 
 
Q: The instructions state that the “bidder must have at least five years’ experience in the construction of similar 

projects of this size and larger”.  For the purpose of meeting this requirement, will the experience of the bidder’s 
principals, management, and supervisory staff be considered?  In other words, if the firm does not meet this 
requirement but its staff does, will the bidder be qualified? 

A: The Experience of the bidder’s principals, management and supervisory staff will be considered to meet this 
requirement as long as that staff is assigned and responsible for direct oversight of the project activities. This 
experience and the proposed staff’s associated experience must be clearly identified as part of the submitted bid 
package.   

 
Q: The instructions state that the “bidder must have successfully constructed, as prime CONTRACTOR, at least three 

projects similar in scope to this project”.  Can this be amended to state “the bidder and/or its subcontractors must 
have…”?   Also, will the County consider striking “as prime contractor” from this requirement?  The experience is 
the same regardless of the firm’s role in the overall project and it is likely that all (or most) of the bidders will be 
using subcontractors for portions of the work.  Some firms may have not been the prime on similar projects but 
are nonetheless qualified.   

A:  Due to the unique nature of the scope of work set forth in this Contract, requiring both bridge demolition and 
offshore reef deployment, the County is amenable to amending the bid requirements to reflect “the bidder and/or 
its subcontractors must have” and replacing the ‘Prime Contractor’ term with ‘Contractor Team’.   

 
Q: At the prebid, it was stated that a survey would be provided.  Will this survey include both the project site and the 

travel route shown in the bid documents?  Bidders need this information ASAP in order to determine whether the 
material has to be trucked away from the site.  If the material has to be trucked, can the County property on 
Wabasso Island Lane be available for use? 

Indian River County  
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A: Please see the survey attached in this Addendum No. 1. Two areas have been identified for material storage, the 
area available for staging on the east side of the project is delineated in the plans. An approximate 100’ x 40’ 
section, sketch is attached with Addendum No.1, of the parking lot on the west side of the bridge will be 
provided for the Contractor to use. 

 
 

Attachments: 
1. Pre-Bid Conference Minutes 
2. Pre-Bid Conference Sign-In Sheet 
3. Updated Itemized Bid Schedule, and updated Page 2 of Specifications Division 2 – Technical Provisions 
4. Wabasso Fishing Pier Demolition and Debris Removal, Bid Plans, March 2019 
5. Permit Boundary and Potential Deployment, Artificial Reef Zone 5 
6. Bathymetric Survey 
7. Original Plan “Fishing Walks at Structure B over Indian River”, Drawing 1, 1968 
8. Wabasso Fishing Piers Rehabilitation, 2006 
9. Available staging area on the west side of the bridge 

 

*************This Addendum must be acknowledged with submittal package and/or by return of this  
Acknowledgement with your submittal package ************  

  
 

Company Name                                  
  
Name:                         Title:                        
    (Type / Printed)  
  
Authorized Signature:                          Date:     
           
Telephone:                       Email:               



Board of County Commissioners 
1801 27th Street 

Vero Beach, Florida 32960-3365 
Telephone: (772) 567-8000 

Fax: (772) 778-9391 
 

 
PRE-BID MEETING MINUTES 

March 7, 2019 at 10:00 AM 
INDIAN RIVER COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

Room A1-303 Building A 
WABASSO CAUSEWAY FISHING PIER DEMOLITION PROJECT 

Project No. IRC-1712 
 

The following meeting notes set forth our understanding of the discussions and decisions made at the 
subject meeting.  If no objections, questions, additions, or comments are received within three (3) working 
days from issuance of the meeting notes, we will assume that our understandings are correct.  The project 
will move forward according to the bid plans and specifications and the understandings herein. 
 
 
 
PROJECT NAME:  Wabasso Causeway Fishing Pier Demolition Project 
PROJECT NUMBER: IRC-1712 
BID NUMBER:  2019035 

INTRODUCTIONS/SIGN IN SHEET 
Attendance at this conference by all bidders was MANDATORY.  No bidder arriving after the 
meeting has begun was allowed to sign in. This meeting was recorded as part of the project 
records.  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The project consists of the demolition and disposal of the existing Wabasso Causeway Fishing 
Pier, approach sidewalks and associated debris. The pier was severely damaged during Hurricane 
Matthew in 2016, with eight sections displaced and laying at the river bottom. The entire pier 
and support structure, which is in two sections and is approximately 1000 feet long, will be 
removed and placed at a permitted offshore artificial reef site. 
 
CONTRACT DETAILS 
Bid Opening:   Thursday, March 28, 2019 at 2:00 PM 
Contract Time:  60 days to substantial completion 
    90 days to final completion 
Engineer’s Estimate:  $1,614,300.00 (Includes Force Account) 
Liquidated Damages:  $1,665.00 per day 
 
CONTACTS BIDDING PROCESS 
All communications concerning this bid shall be directed to Indian River County Purchasing 
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Division at purchasing@ircgov.com. 
 
PROJECT CONSULTANTS:   
Atkins, Melbourne, Florida – Kenneth M. Good, PE 

UTILITIES:    
FP&L – A known electric cable is running along the waterway bottom to the south of the pier.  
Other utilities shall be located by the One-Call System. 

PERMITS:    
All permitting for the project has been completed. The permits include: 
Department of the Army Permit - SAJ-2016-02916 (SP-AWP) 
Department of the Army Permit – SAJ-2017-00473 (NWP-CMM) 
Department of Environmental Protection – 31-0354699-006-EE 
  
OTHER ISSUES 

• Review and comment with questions and clarifications as soon as possible, no further 
comments 10 days prior to bid opening (Monday, March 18, 2019). 

• The Notice to Proceed tentative of Contract Award. 
• Maintenance of Traffic:  

- Contractor shall submit a Maintenance of Traffic Plan to the Indian River County, 
Traffic Division for acceptance. 

- The Maintenance of Traffic Plan shall meet the FDOT Index 600, January 2018 
Edition and shall be signed and sealed by a Florida P.E. 

- Traffic Signs approved by FDOT may be required for Trucks/Equipment 
entering/leaving the park from the CR-510 Wabasso Bridge Traffic Lanes.  

- James Ennis (IRC-Assistant Public Works Director) stated that the Wabasso 
Causeway Bridge falls under FDOT jurisdiction and any operation from the bridge 
would need approval from FDOT, which would include the Contractor obtaining a 
permit from FDOT any MOT device or signage to be installed. The County has no 
ability to grant permission to operate from the structure. 

- Driveway, business and road access shall be maintained at all times 
 

• The Contractor will be permitted to restrict the boat ramp usage of the boat ramp for up 
to 30 min two times a day for loading and unloading. 

• Staging area is shown on the plan, space is limited for staging and contractor may need to 
arrange for frequent removal of unsuitable material and construction debris.  

• The Contractor shall be responsible for removal of all debris generated by the marine & 
land-based demolition operations, along with restoration of the impacted areas.  
Excavated material – such as the concrete sidewalk, is to be removed and disposed of by 
Contractor.   

• Preparation of Concrete for Reef Deployment – all metal or exposed reinforcement shall 
be removed as close to the concrete as possible, and extend no more than 6 inches, per 
the permit requirements. Removed metal material shall be disposed of in an approved 
manner. 

• All clean concrete sections over 500 lbs shall be prepared and deployed within the 

mailto:purchasing@ircgov.com
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permitted OIARC reef area located approximately 3 miles off shore and about 5 miles south 
of the Sebastian inlet. Contractor shall comply with all conditions and requirements of the 
permits.  

 
• James Ennis (IRC) stated, the reef shall be deployed in Reef Zone 5, Sub-Section C of the 

attached Plan (Center Coordinates: -80.34668584, 27.82888667), all material must to be 
placed within a 100-foot radius of the provided coordinates, in a uniform fashion with a 
maximum relief of 12 feet. The County will confirm the depths with a sound depth finder. If 
Contractor exceeds this maximum relief, they will be responsible for removing material to 
meet permit requirements. 

 
• All demolition, removal, and disposal work shall be conducted from a barge or vessel. No 

work shall be conducted from the CR-510 Highway Bridge.  
• Contractor will be responsible for Notifying the US Coast Guard for a Notice to Mariners. 
• Work hours – IRC work hours are from 7AM to 5PM, however on-water work time will also 

be limited to ½ hour after sunrise through ½ hour before sundown. Night time 
demolition/construction operations will not be allowed, work on weekends or holidays will 
need approval from IRC.  

 
• James Ennis (IRC) emphasized the following requirements found in the Contract 

Documents:  
- A minimum two (2) week notification prior to material deployment is required under 

the Department of the Army Permit - SAJ-2016-02916 (SP-AWP). 
- Pre-deployment dives are required by the Permit and will be conducted by County staff.  
- Maximum deployment at each Reef Zone is 1000 tons, as per Department of the Army 

Permit - SAJ-2016-02916 (SP-AWP),  
- Barge for deployment is required to have Hydrostatic Number Charts to confirm the 

tonnage of material deployed. 
- Army Corps requires clean concrete with no rebar sticking out more than 6 inches – See 

Department of the Army Permit - SAJ-2016-02916 (SP-AWP). 
- Handrails shall be removed on all sections and this is to be considered as part of the 

pay item for disposal of each deck section.   
- Site restoration item on bid sheet shall include all concrete removal not suitable for 

deployment or broken concrete (pieces less than 500 lb) 
 

• Ken Good (Atkins) stated that post-tensioning and pre-tensioning cables which are 
exposed will require removal and would fall under the rebar removal requirement 

 
DISCUSSION 
Questions & Answers 
 
Q:  Will FPL buoy their line? 
A: It will be up to the contractor to coordinate with FP&L as to how they want their line protected 

during construction. 
 
Q:  What is the anticipated timing for Notice to Proceed? 
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A:  Approximate 4 weeks after bid opening, the Bid Opening and/or Notice to Proceed will not be 
delayed due to the typical conditions favorable to deployment.  

 
Q: Is there a specific reason for 5-day work week?  
A:  Regular working hours are defined as Monday through Friday 7AM to 5PM. Cost of inspection 

or testing during overtime work will be paid by the contractor, see Section 0800, 
Supplementary Conditions to the General Conditions, Article SC-6.02. Overtime Rate for 
Inspectors: $50.00/ per hour for county inspector for 8 hours minimum and $110.00/ hour for 
Atkins’ Engineers. 

 
Q:  Lead time for diving inspection.  
A:  A minimum two (2) week notification prior to material deployment is required under the 

Department of the Army Permit - SAJ-2016-02916 (SP-AWP). County staff will conduct the pre- 
and post-deployment dives required for permit reporting. The total number of anticipated 
deployments necessary to deploy up to 1000 tons of bridge material will be required at the 
time of the two (2) week notification.  

 
Q:  Will a County inspector be on site at all times? 
A:  Yes, the County or an engineering consultant will be onsite. 

 
Q:  Can the Contractor work on both sides of the bridge demolition at the same time? 
A:  Yes. 
 
Q:  Can deployment of the material be taken out to the sea after hours? 
A:  There are no restrictions on the transportation time of the material by the contract or permit.  
 
Q:  What happens if the site is not acceptable following the inspection dive? 
A:  The rule is to move 500 ft from any newly identified hardbottom.  
 
Q:  Can the dive be done a day before deployment? 
A:  The site can be checked a few days before however, it’s most likely County staff will be onsite 

the morning of the first deployment to complete a pre-deployment assessment. If a pre-
deployment dive is conducted days prior to deployment of material, County staff will still be 
on site to observe and record material deployment for permit reporting purposes.  

 
Q:  Will slabs be able to handle the removal of post tension cables, and what if concrete is 

crumbling once it has been removed? 
A:  There are plans available from the rehabilitation and the contractor shall make his own 

judgement, pieces of concrete acceptable can be cut to 10 ft lengths with a minimum weight 
of 500 lb. Available drawings are attached to this document.  Only exposed cables would need 
to be removed. 

 
Q:  Is there a restriction on placement? 
A:  It should be a uniform drop from the barge. For example, a loader can be used to push the 

material from the barge. 
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Q:  What type of turbidity boom will need to be used?  
A:  The floating turbidity barrier type is at the contractor’s discretion as necessary to achieve their 

demolition operation while meeting permit requirements.  The Contractor shall be responsible 
for providing BMP’s sufficient for the location and conditions. 

 
Q:  Does the work area and sea grass area need to be protected by the turbidity booms.  
A:  Yes, the sea grass shall be protected with turbidity barriers as shown on the contract drawings. 

The work area shall be protected with a floating turbidity barrier in accordance with the permit 
SAJ-2017-00473.   

 
Q:  Will be additional park area made available? 
A:  No, the intent of this project was, to have the deployment material be stored on the barge 

and not in the park area. A bathymetric survey of the channel from the pier south to the 
Intracoastal Waterway is attached.  

 
Q:  Can the park be used to truck material off site? 
A:  The area available for staging on the east side of the project is delineated in the plans. An 

approximate 100’ x 40’ section, sketch attached, of the parking lot on the west side of the 
bridge will be provided for the Contractor to use. Please be aware that the Contractor will be 
responsible for restoring the lay down areas to the condition prior to use.  

 
Q:  Does all debris material need to be deployed to the reef? 
A:  The Contractor shall use all suitable material from the existing bridge components to build an 

artificial reef located in reef zone 5C, center coordinates provided above.5C. Up to 1000 TN 
can be deployed at this location. No materials should be tampered with to minimize the 
amount of suitable material eligible for deployment. 

 
Q:  What happens if the Army Corps finds the material not suitable during inspection? While it 

has been selected on established material criteria as outlined in the permits? 
A:  Material staged for placement will be inspected by County staff and the Contractor to confirm 

it complies with all requirements outlined in the permit prior to any and all AOCE inspections 
pre-deployment. If any unforeseen conditions arise, they will be addressed at that time.  

 
Q:  Do the piles have stingers?  
A:  The details of the piles are not known.  
 
Q:  What is the force account used for? 
A:  Force Account Funds can be used by the County staff for unforeseen conditions, expenses or 

overrun on quantities due to additional work required. Any work proposed to utilize 
contingency funds must be identified and agreed upon before any work is performed and a 
Work Change Directive issued prior to any work being performed.  

 
Q:  Bid Item No2.01 Crane, when will that be used? 
A:  Revised bid sheets will be issued with this Addendum which remove this pay item. All 

equipment costs necessary for the project work to be completed shall be included in the 
respective pay items bid prices the work is associated with.  
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Q:  What if bids are exceeding the County’s budgets? 
A:  Options to address a low bid in excess of the current project budget will be evaluated at that 

time. 
 
Q:  Is there a commercial diving requirement? OSHA? Commercial? Or Army Corps? 
A:  It is up to the Contractor to follow their business requirements/OSHA/company policies. This 

is not an Army Corps project and specific dive requirements are not mandated by the County. 
An Army Corps dive plan is not required. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 11:00AM 
 







ADDENDUM #1 

Item No. Description Unit Quantity Unit Price Amount

2 MOBILIZATION/DEMOBILIZATION EA 1

3 DEMOLITION - WEST STRUCTURES

3.01 FULL 50 FOOT SECTIONS ABOVE WATER, REMOVAL EA 8

3.02 40 FOOT SECTION/ABUTMENT EA 1

3.03 FULL PIERS EA 11

3.04
UNDERWATER SUPERSTRUCTURE SECTIONS (INCLUDES 
DIVERS, BMP'S ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING), REMOVAL EA 2

3.05 PARTIAL PIERS TO BE RECOVERED EA 5

3.06 UPLAND SIDEWALK REMOVAL SF 300

4 DEMOLITION -EAST STRUCTURES

4.01 FULL 50 FOOT SECTIONS ABOVE WATER, REMOVAL EA 3

4.02 30 FOOT SECTION/ABUTMENT EA 1

4.03 FULL PIERS EA 5

4.04
UNDERWATER SUPERSTRUCTURE SECTIONS (INCLUDES 
DIVERS, BMP'S ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING), REMOVAL EA 6

4.05 PARTIAL PIERS TO BE REMOVED EA 5

4.06 PARTIAL PIERS TO BE RECOVERED EA 5

4.07 UPLAND SIDEWALK REMOVAL SF 300

5 DISPOSAL OF MATERIALS (OFFSHORE REEF DEPLOYMENT) LS 1

6 SITE RESTORATION LS 1

WABASSO CAUSEWAY FISHING PIER DEMOLITION PROJECT SUB-TOTAL 

FORCE ACCOUNT $220,000.00

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE (INCLUDING FORCE ACCOUNT)  TOTAL

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

AND THE ITEMIZED BID SCHEDULE. THE BID SCHEDULE WILL BE UTILIZED FOR BIDDING PURPOSES.

  SF=Square Feet   LS=Lump Sum     EA=Each  PD=Per Day

PROJECT NAME:WABASSO CAUSEWAY FISHING PIER DEMOLITION PROJECT
PROJECT NO. IRC-1712                     BID NO. 2019035

BIDDER'S NAME ___________________________________________________________

TOTAL PROJECT BID AMOUNT IN WORDS________________________________________________________

NOTE: IF THERE IS A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE PLANS (SUMMARY OF PAY ITEMS) 

00310-3
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SPECIFICATIONS Division 2 – Technical Provisions 
 

 

 
Wabasso Fishing Pier Demolition and Debris Removal Technical Provisions  Page 2 of 39 

 
SECTION 1 – MOBILIZATION/DEMOBILIZATION 
 
Perform preparatory work and operations in mobilizing for beginning work on the project, 
including, but not limited to, those operations necessary for the movement of personnel, 
equipment, supplies, and incidentals to the project site and for the establishment of temporary 
offices, buildings, safety equipment and first aid supplies, and sanitary and other facilities. 
Include the costs of bonds and any required insurance and any other preconstruction expense 
necessary for the start of the work, excluding the cost of construction materials. 
 
Demobilization shall be deemed to consist of all tasks necessary for removal of materials, plant, 
and equipment from the site upon completion of the work, restoration of the site and site access 
to original condition. 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
SECTION 2 - PREVENTION, CONTROL, AND ABATEMENT OF EROSION AND WATER 
POLLUTION 
 
 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
1.1 SCOPE 
 
A. This Section covers erosion control and the treatment of dewatering water and 

stormwater runoff from the construction site and work area.  Pollution control measures 
shall prevent polluted or turbid waters from being discharged from the construction site 
or work area to undeveloped portions of the site or offsite, including but not limited to 
Multiple Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s) and Waters of the State. 
 

B. The OWNER considers pollution from dewatering water and stormwater runoff from a 
construction site or work area to be a very serious offense.  The CONTRACTOR is solely 
responsible for preventing pollution caused by dewatering water and stormwater runoff 
from the construction site or work area.  Note that state regulations do not allow mixing 
stormwater and dewatering groundwater in the same release – separate and 
independent discharges are required. 

 
C. Pollution control measures specified herein represent minimum standards to be adhered 

to by the CONTRACTOR throughout the Project’s construction.  The OWNER reserves 
the right to require the CONTRACTOR to employ additional pollution control measures, 
when in the sole opinion of the OWNER, they are warranted.  If site specific conditions 
require additional erosion and stormwater pollution control measures during any phase 
of construction or operation to prevent erosion or to control sediment or other pollution, 



7175 Murrell Road
Melbourne, Florida  32940

321-242-4942
FBPR Certificate of Authorization No. 24

Engineer of Record: Kenneth M. Good, PE
         Fl. Lic. No. 61687

PROJECT
LOCATION

DRAWING INDEX

GENERAL NOTES

PRE-HURRICANE MATTHEW CONDITIONS

POST-HURRICANE MATHEW CONDITIONS

EXISTING PIER COMPONENT INVENTORY PLAN - WEST

EXISTING PIER COMPONENT INVENTORY PLAN - EAST

DEMOLITION PLAN - WEST SECTION

DEMOLITION PLAN - EAST SECTION

BARGE TRANSIT ROUTE

BMP PLAN VIEW AND DETAILS

G-001 TO G-002

V-100

V-101

V-102

V-103

C-100

C-101

C-110

C-500 TO C-501

Indian River County
1801 27th Street,

Vero Beach, FL 32960
Project Manager: James Gray

5 MILES TO SEBASTIAN, FL

8.3 MILES TO VERO BEACH, FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N O R T H

GOOD7737
Rectangle

GOOD7737
Typewriter
Kirstin Leiendecker



GENERAL NOTES

1. THIS PROJECT INCLUDES THE COMPLETE DEMOLITION AND

REMOVAL OF THE ENTIRE EAST AND WEST SPANS OF THE

WABASSO FISHING PIER, ALONG WITH THE CONNECTING

SIDEWALKS AT EACH END. ALL COMPONENTS OF THE PIER

(INTACT AND DAMAGED/DISPLACED), INCLUDING PILES, CAPS,

DECK SECTIONS AND LOOSE DEBRIS, ARE TO BE REMOVED.

THE ENINGEER OR OWNER SHALL BE INFORMED UPON

DISCOVERY OF ANY DEBRIS UNRELATED TO WABASSO FISHING

PIER.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL NOTES, CONDITIONS

AND REQUIREMENTS GIVEN WITHIN THE DRAWINGS,

SPECIFICATIONS, AND PERMITS. THE SPECIFICATIONS HAVE

BEEN PREPARED BY INDIAN RIVER COUNTY STAFF

INDEPENDENT OF THE PLANS.  THESE SPECIFICATIONS COVER

THE OFFSHORE PLACEMENT AND PROVIDE SUPPLEMENTAL

INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEMOLITION. IN

THE EVENT THERE IS A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THESE PLANS

AND THE SPECIFICATIONS OR OTHER COUNTY SUPPLIED

DOCUMENTS, IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO

REQUEST CLARIFICATION. GENERALLY THE MORE STRINGENT

REQUIREMENT WILL PREVAIL.

3. ALL METAL RAILINGS, BRACKETS, EXPOSED REINFORCING, OR

OTHER FITTINGS SHALL BE REMOVED AS CLOSE TO THE

CONCRETE AS PRACTICABLE, WITH PROTRUSION NOT TO

EXCEED 6 INCHES IN LENGTH FROM THE CONCRETE IT IS

INCASED IN. SAID MATERIALS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AT AN

APPROVED UPLAND FACILITY.

4. ALL CLEAN CONCRETE COMPONENTS OVER 500 LBS SHALL BE

DISPOSED OF AT 1 OF 12 OFFSHORE ARTIFICIAL REEF SITES

LOCATED APPROXIMATELY FIVE MILES EAST-SOUTHEAST OF

SEBASTIAN INLET. THIS REEF SITE WAS AUTHORIZED BY USACE

PERMIT SAJ-2016-02916 (SP-AWP). CONTRACTOR SHALL

COMPLY WITH ALL CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS WITHIN

AUTHORIZED PERMITS, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED

OTHERWISE.

5. THE FOLLOWING IS A SUMMARY OF THE MAJOR PIER

COMPONENTS TO BE REMOVED.

11 - INTACT 50' CONCRETE PIER DECK SECTIONS

2 - INTACT 25' CONCRETE PIER DECK ABUTMENT SECTIONS

8 - SUBMERGED/DISPLACED/DAMAGED CONCRETE PIER

DECK SECTIONS

38 - FULL LENGTH INTACT CONCRETE PILES

5 - PARTIAL/BROKEN/DISPLACED CONCRETE PILES

16 - INTACT CONCRETE PILE CAPS

5 - SUBMERGED/DISPLACED/DAMAGED CONCRETE PILE CAPS

1,530 SQ. FT. - CONCRETE SIDEWALK

6. PIER COMPONENTS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE WATERWAY

WITHOUT ADVERSELY IMPACTING AQUATIC NATURAL

RESOURCES.

7. PIER COMPONENTS WILL BE LIFTED STRAIGHT UP AND NOT

DRAGGED, SO THAT NO POTENTIAL SEAGRASS AND/OR

HARDBOTTOM IS HARMED OR DAMAGED.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY PRECAUTION

TO PROTECT EXISTING STRUCTURES INCLUDING

UNDERGROUND AND ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES.

AN 811 UTILITY LINE LOCATION CALL (1-800-432-4770) SHALL BE

CONDUCTED BY CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ANY UTILITIES IN

THE FACILITY. A KNOWN FPL ELECTRICAL CABLE(S) IS RUNNING

ALONG THE WATERWAY BOTTOM JUST TO THE SOUTH OF THE

PIER. THE CABLE(S)SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE

DURING DEMOLITION OPERATIONS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

COORDINATE DIRECTLY WITH FPL TO INSURE CLEARANCE AND

PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS, APPROPRIATE FOR THE

CONTRACTOR'S PROPOSED EQUIPMENT ARE MET. PRIOR TO

MOBILIZATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT A PLAN,

WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED BY FPL, IDENTIFYING REQUIRED

CLEARANCES AND PROTECTION METHODS.

9. SUBMERGED PIER SECTIONS WERE LOCATED WITH A DIVER

AND HAND-HELD GPS UNIT. LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE.

THE ORIENTATION OF THE SUBMERGED DECK SECTIONS IS

APPROXIMATE BASED ON DIVER OBSERVATIONS WITH LIMITED

VISIBILITY. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO

VERIFY THE POSITION, ORIENTATION, CONDITIONS, ETC. OF ALL

PIER COMPONENTS AND DEBRIS PRIOR TO MOBILIZATION.

10. COMPLETE REMOVAL OF THE PILES IS PREFFERED. IF IT IS NOT

PRACTICAL OR POSSIBLE TO COMPLETELY REMOVE A PILE, IT

SHALL BE CUT OFF AT LEAST ONE FOOT BELOW THE MUDLINE,

WITH ALL REINFORCING CUT FLUSH WITH THE CONCRETE.

BASED ON CRANE CAPACITY LIMITS, DECK SECTIONS MAY BE

CUT TO MINIMUM LENGHT OF 10 FEET.

11. ALL EQUIPMENT INCLUDING VESSELS AND TURBIDITY CURTAIN

WILL BE REQUIRED TO FOLLOW PROPER U.S.C.G. PROTOCOL

FOR OVERNIGHT STORAGE.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL WARNING SIGNS,

LIGHTS, & SIGNALS AS REQUIRED TO ADEQUATELY WARN THE

PUBLIC AGAINST DANGER AND TRESPASS WITHIN THE

DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION SITE.

13. ALL PIER DEMOLITION, REMOVAL, AND DISPOSAL WORK SHALL

BE CONDUCTED FROM A BARGE OR SIMILAR VESSEL. NO WORK

SHALL BE CONDUCTED FROM THE HIGHWAY BRIDGE, AND THE

WORK SHALL NOT IMPACT TRAFFIC ON THE HIGHWAY BRIDGE.

14. NOTICE TO MARINERS:

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR NOTIFYING

THE U.S. COAST GUARD IN SUFFICIENT TIME TO ALLOW FOR

PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE TO MARINERS. THE LOCAL COAST

GUARD IS:

COMMANDER

7TH COAST GUARD DISTRICT

BRICKELL PLAZA FEDERAL BUILDING

909 S.E. FIRST AVENUE, ROOM 406

MIAMI, FLORIDA 33131-3028

ATTN: (LNM)

TELEPHONE: (305)415-6750

FAX: (305)415-6757

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN APPROVAL FROM THE U.S.

COAST GUARD FOR ALL BUOYS, MARKERS, AND OTHER

NAVIGATION AIDS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. AIDS, LIGHTS OR

TARGETS SHALL NOT BE PLACED OR COLORED IN A MANNER

THAT THEY WILL OBSTRUCT OR BE CONFUSED WITH

NAVIGATION AIDS.

15. GENERAL HOURS OF OPERATIONS WILL BE LIMITED TO ONE

HALF HOUR AFTER SUNRISE THROUGH ONE HALF HOUR

BEFORE SUNDOWN; NO NIGHTTIME OPERATIONS WILL BE

ALLOWED.  NO WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED ON SUNDAY'S OR

HOLIDAYS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER OR

ENGINEER

RESOURCE PROTECTION NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL WATER QUALITY

REQUIREMENTS AND REGULATORY PERMITS ISSUED BY LOCAL,

STATE AND FEDERAL AUTHORITIES PRIOR TO AND AT THE TIME

OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. MANGROVES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE DURING

DEMOLITION OPERATIONS. A MINIMUM FIFTEEN FOOT WIDE

BUFFER AROUND LANDWARD SIDE OF THE MANGROVES DRIP

LINE SHALL BE FENCED OFF WITH ORANGE CONSTRUCTION

SAFETY FENCE.

3. SEAGRASS SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE DURING

DEMOLITION OPERATIONS. NO VESSELS OR EQUIPMENT

SHALLOPERATE OVER OR TRAVERSE ATOP OF THE SEAGRASS

BED. A MINIMUM TWENTY-FIVE FOOT BUFFER AROUND THE

SEAGRASS BED SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH A FLOATING

TURBIDITY BARRIER.
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4. ALL PIER REMOVAL OPERATIONS SHALL BE CONTAINED

WITHIN WATER QUALITY BMPS SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED

TO, TURBIDITY BARRIERS AND SILT FENCES.

5. PIER COMPONENTS SHALL BE LIFTED STRAIGHT UP AND NOT

DRAGGED, SO THAT ANY POTENTIAL SEAGRASS AND/OR

HARDBOTTOM IS NOT DAMAGED.

6. AT ALL TIMES, A MINIMUM 1 FOOT VERTICAL CLEARANCE

BETWEEN THE KEEL OR LOWEST PORTION OF THE VESSEL

RUNNING GEAR AND THE BOTTOM OF THE WATERWAY SHALL

BE MAINTAINED.
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RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY THE ESTIMATED WEIGHTS AS NECESSARY FOR THEIR NEEDS.
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DRIVE BOTH

POSTS ABOUT

10 INCHES

INTO THE

GROUND AND

BURY FLAP

ROTATE BOTH

POSTS AT LEAST

180 DEGREES IN

A CLOCKWISE

DIRECTION TO

CREATE A TIGHT

SEAL WITH THE

FABRIC

MATERIAL

DIRECTION OF RUNOFF WATERS

PLACE THE

END POST

OF THE

SECOND

FENCE

INSIDE THE

END POST

OF THE

FIRST FENCE

APPROXIMATE

4-INCH BY

4-INCH

TRENCH

FILTER FABRIC

MATERIAL

SECURELY

FASTENED TO THE

POSTS OR IF USED

THE WIRE MESH

APPROXIMATELY

8 INCHES OF

FILTER FABRIC

MATERIAL MUST

EXTEND INTO A

TRENCH AND BE

ANCHORED

WITH

COMPACTED

BACKFILL

MATERIAL

WOOD OR 

ATTACHING TWO SILT FENCES

RUNOFF

(MIN)

10 INCHES

STEEL POST

BEEN FASTENED TO THE POSTS

MESH WIRE SCREEN WHICH HAS

BE ATTACHED TO A 6-INCH (MAX)

FILTER FABRIC MATERIAL CAN

FOR ADDITIONAL STRENGTH

BACKFILLED TRENCH

TO BE 6-10 FEET APART

SPACING OF POSTS

MATERIAL

FILTER FABRIC

2' MIN.

INSTALLING A FILTER

FABRIC SILT FENCE

NOTES:

1.  INSPECT AND REPAIR FENCE AFTER EACH STORM EVENT AND REMOVE

SEDIMENT WHEN NECESSARY.

2. REMOVED SEDIMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED TO AN AREA THAT WILL NOT

CONTRIBUTE SEDIMENT OFF-SITE AND CAN BE PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.

3. SILT FENCE SHALL BE PLACED ON SLOPE CONTOURS TO MAXIMIZE PONDING

EFFICIENCY.

8"

TRENCH WITH GRAVEL

ALTERNATE DETAIL

STANDARD DETAIL

TRENCH WITH NATIVE BACKFILL

PONDING HT.

RUNOFF

GRAVEL

12" MIN.

9" MAX.

(RECOMMENDED)

STORAGE HT.

RUNOFF

STEEL OR

WOOD POST

36" HIGH MAX.

12" MIN.

4" x 6" TRENCH

WITH COMPACTED

BACKFILL

PONDING HT.

FILTER FABRIC

ATTACH SECURELY

TO UPSTREAM

SIDE OF POST

F
L
O

W

F
L
O

W

WIRE SUPPORT FENCE

6' MAX SPACING WITHOUT

10' MAX. SPACING WITH

WIRE SUPPORT FENCE

WOOD POST

STEEL OR

NEEDED WITHOUT WIRE MESH SUPPORT

EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC 

INSTALLING A FILTER

FABRIC SILT FENCE
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22 OZ NYLON REINFORCED VINYL

STRESS BAND

PVC SLOT - CONNECTOR FLOATATION

DEPTH ACCORDING TO NEED

5/16 VINYL COATING CABLE

(ON BOTH SIDES OF CURTAIN

TO REDUCE STRAIN)

#24 SAFETY HOOK

STRESS PLATE

LAP LINK

5/16 IN.

CHAIN

TYPE III

ORIENTATION WHEN INSTALLED

 (TIDAL SITUATION - TYPE III)

NOTE: ANCHORING WITH BUOYS,

AS SHOWN, REMOVES ALL

VERTICAL FORCES FROM THE

CURTAIN.  HENCE, THE CURTAIN

WILL NOT SINK FROM WIND OR

CURRENT LOADS.

BUOY

ATTACH LINES

TO SHACKLE

AUTOMATIC FLASHING

LIGHT (ON AT DUSK-

OFF AT DAWN) 100'

ON CENTER SHALL BE

USED IN NAVIGABLE

CHANNELS ONLY

STANDARD CONTAINMENT

SYSTEMS LIGHT BUOY

ANCHOR (AS

RECOMMENDED BY

THE MANUFACTURER)

WATER SURFACE

MIN. 12"

CURTAIN

RIVERBED

MIN. 2'

5' 5'

FLOATING TURBIDITY

BARRIER TYPE III

WORK AREA

SHORELINE

ANCHOR PT.

ANCHOR PT.

EBB

FLOOD

ANCHOR &

ANCHOR BUOY

BARRIER MOVEMENT

DUE TO TIDAL CHANGE

* THIS DISTANCE IS VARIABLE

TYPICAL INSTALLATION LAYOUT OF

  FLOATING TURBIDITY BARRIERS

SHORELINE

ANCHOR PT.

TIDAL WATERS AND/OR HEAVY WIND AND WAVE ACTION

ANCHOR PT.

INSTALLING A FILTER

FABRIC SILT FENCE

F

L

O

W

F

L

O

W

4"

POINT A SHOULD BE HIGHER THAN POINT B

(FRONT ELEVATION)

DRAINAGE INSTALLATION

(PERSPECTIVE VIEW)

A

B

A

FLOW

EXCAVATED SOIL

4. BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE 

AND EXTEND IT INTO THE TRENCH

3. STAPLE FILTER MATERIAL TO STAKES

UPSCALE ALONG THE LINE OF STAKES

2. EXCAVATE A 4" X 4" TRENCH

F

L

O

W

4"

SHEET FLOW INSTALLATION

1. SET STAKES

F

L

O

W

6

' 
M

A

X

.

3' MAX.

1/4 IN. TIE ROPE

FLOATATION

NYLON REINFORCED VINYL

ALL SEAMS HEAT SEALED

1/4 IN. CHAIN

5/8 IN. POLYPROPYLENE ROPE

FOLDS FOR COMPACT STORAGE

DEPTH ACCORDING TO NEED

ECONOMY FABRICS AVAILABLE

18 OZ. 300 LB/IN. STANDARD

FOLDS EVERY 6 FEET

DEPTH ACCORDING TO NEED

100 FT. STANDARD LENGTH

GALVANIZED #24 SAFETY HOOK

BALLAST & LOAD LINE

5/16 IN. CHAIN

STRESS PLATE

STRESS BAND

FLOATATION

PVC SLOT-CONNECTOR

WATER 

TOP LOAD LINE

5/16 VINYL COATED CABLE

STRESS PLATE (TO REMOVE

PRESSURE FROM FLOATS)

TYPE II

TYPE I

(BLOW-UP OF SHACKLE CONNECTION)

SEAL

FLOATING TURBIDITY BARRIER

TYPE(S) I & II

18 (OR 22) OZ. VINYL

COVERED NYLON
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Available staging area 100' x 40' at the parking lot on the west side of the bridge.
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